MOUNTVIEW ACADEMY OF THEATRE
ARTS LIMITED

(a company limited by guarantee)

Charity Number 274166
Company Number 01019858

REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31ST AUGUST 2021






Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited

Contents

Page
Reference and Administrative Information 1
Trustees' Report 2-19
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities 20
Independent Auditor's Report 21-23
Statement of Financial Activities 24
Balance Sheet 25
Statement of Cash Flows 26-27

Notes to the Accounts 28-39



Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Reference and Administrative Information

Company Number
Charity Number

Directors and Trustees

Secretary

Principal & Artistic Director
Executive Director

Artistic Director and CEO
Registered Office &
Principal Address

Auditors

Bankers

Solicitors

For the year ended 31 August 2021

Regulatory Information

01019858
274166

Sir Brendan Barber
Lady Susan Chinn
Laura Gander-Howe
Dame Vikki Heywood
Trevor Jackson
Benjamin Lafayette
Andrew Parker

John Reiss

Johnson Situ

Giles Terera

Vincent Wang

Dame Rosemary Squire
Helen Enright

Jeremy Smeeth

Stephen Jameson
Sarah Preece
Abigail Morris

120 Peckham Hill Street
London
SE155JT

Moore Kingston Smith LLP

Devonshire House
60 Goswell Road
London

ECI1IM 7AD

Unity Trust Bank PLC
Nine Brindley Place
Birmingham

B1 2HB

Bank of Scotland
14-16 Cockspur Street
London

SWL1Y 5BL

Close Brothers Limited
10 Crown Place
London

EC2A 4FT

Bates Wells
2-6 Cannon Street
London

EC4M 6YH

Resigned 27 January 2022

Resigned 9 December 2021
Resigned 28 April 2022
Resigned 28 April 2022
Resigned 9 December 2021

Resigned 22 February 2021
Appointed 22 February 2021
Appointed 21 July 2021

Resigned 31 December 2021
Resigned 31 December 2021
Appointed 1 January 2022



MOUNTVIEW

Trustees’ Report — September 2020 to August 2021

INTRODUCTION

The Trustees hereby present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2021. The
reference and administrative information set out on page 1 forms part of this report.

This year was again dominated by the Covid-19 pandemic, which has lasted far longer than anyone imagined
back in March 2020. Having worked through the immediate issues of lockdown, remote learning and financial
instability, we returned to the building in September 2020, operating on a model of blended learning,
combining Covid-secure in-person teaching with continued online provision. Despite the constraints of this
model and the ongoing social and financial pressures they have faced, our students have again fully committed
to their learning during this academic year, even when we were forced back into full online provision at the
beginning of 2021. With spring came a gradual opening up of society, as vaccination and booster uptake rates
bolstered defences against the virus.

As for many industries and organisations, there have been many false starts and changes of direction forced
on us during 2021. We faced particular challenges in mounting our public facing productions, which are a key
part of our third year undergraduate and postgraduate performance training. Plans and schedules were
constantly changed and changed again, and although almost all productions in the year ended up as restricted
performances, either video recorded or attended by limited staff members for assessment purposes, we
managed to get all these shows on stage, with only one exception.

Whilst we are immensely proud of ‘keeping the show on the road’ throughout this period, there is no doubt
that this has required incredible dedication and resilience from our staff teams, and has come at a significant
financial cost. For large parts of the financial year we had to divide teaching groups into two to minimise
numbers and social contact; and with that has come doubled up teaching costs. We have also had to invest
more resources in cleaning, Covid testing facilities and other Covid-secure measures.

Despite the virulence of the Omicron variance over the winter months, the period since the year end has seen
many aspects of normal life gradually returning. We have been able to resume more normal teaching
patterns, and have very recently removed the last of our Covid restrictions for staff and students. Commercial
and fundraising income is beginning to pick up again, and we have exciting plans for new income generation
projects in the pipeline.

The Trustees would like to thank all Mountview’s students, staff, freelance workers, commercial partners,
funders and stakeholders for their resilience, hard work and support during this deeply challenging time.
Although new challenges have now emerged — principally energy and wage inflation, and geo-political unrest -
we remain optimistic that the we will be able to continue to build back in 2022 and beyond.

STRATEGIC REPORT
Charitable Objects and Principal Activities

The principal charitable aim of Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited (‘Mountview’, ‘the Academy’, ‘the
Charity’) continues to be the promotion and provision of vocational education amongst members of the
public; developing the public’s appreciation and understanding of the arts.

The primary activity of the Charity is the provision of high quality education and training at foundation,
undergraduate degree and postgraduate degree levels, and via various short courses, for:
e Students who wish to work professionally as actors and performers, or production professionals, in
the theatre, music and related industries;
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e Part-time students and members of the local community, both adults and children, who wish to
develop their creativity and skills.

From its home in Peckham, South London, Mountview also presents a public programme of student
productions, hosts incoming external events and productions and provides office, rehearsal and retail space to
a variety of community, not for profit and commercial tenants and hirers. Proceeds from these activities are
all invested back into the charitable work of the Academy.

Mission and Strategic Objectives

Overview
Mountview is one of the UK'’s leading drama schools. We have a worldwide reputation for excellence in
education and training.

Our vision is Excellence, Access and Innovation:

Excellence: To produce the next generation of leading actors and creative artists.

Access: To train the most talented people regardless of background or income.

Innovation: To create challenging work in collaboration with the finest directors, writers and composers at
our new fit-for-purpose theatre and training facility in the heart of Peckham.

Excellence

Our last Higher Education Review (Alternative Providers) was conducted by the Quality Assurance Agency
(QAA) in 2017, and followed up the next year by a regular monitoring visit. QAA confirmed their highest level
of satisfaction, that we met all requirements and UK expectations. The University of East Anglia (UEA), our
validating partner undertook their 5-year Institutional Review in 2019 and confirmed our excellence as a
provider, and in the same year we also received an excellent inspection report from Council for Dance, Drama
and Musical Theatre (CDMT) who accredit our provision.

Students on our undergraduate Performance courses have the opportunity to obtain a Diploma in Professional
Acting/Musical Theatre from Trinity College London, one of our Academic Partners. This Further Education
provision means that these courses are subject to inspection by the Office for Standards in Education,
Children’s Services and Skills (Ofsted). Our most recent inspection was in autumn 2015, and we were delighted
to be deemed an Outstanding provider across all elements of the inspection. Our courses were also
successfully revalidated by Trinity in 2020.

In the 2021 National Student Survey (NSS) our response rate was 86% (down 5% on the previous year) and our
overall satisfaction was 68%, which was considerably lower than previous years. However, it should be noted
that this graduating year group were significantly affected by the Covid-19 pandemic and resulting lockdowns;
these factors understandably reduced satisfaction rates across the Higher Education sector.

Access

In 2020/21 142 students received Dance and Drama Awards (DaDA) funding from the Education and Skills
Funding Agency to complete the Trinity College Diploma. The Dance and Drama Awards continue to provide
the principal source of financial support for students showing exceptional potential to succeed in the theatre
industry and are vital to the ongoing diversity of our student intake.

In addition, several students on our programmes are supported by fees and hardship bursaries afforded
through generous donations to Mountview and from the Peter Coxhead Scholarship Fund and the Judi Dench
Fund for Access to Drama Training. We increased our financial support provision during the Covid-19
pandemic, in recognition of the financial challenges faced by many of our students and their families. These
increased levels of support have been maintained even as the pandemic has begun to wane.

Mountview has developed a Statement of Access, Participation and Public Good, which is published on our
website and updated regularly.
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Innovation
Mountview continues to develop its reputation as a home for experiment and innovation and continues to
champion new writing.

Mountview’s new building has continued to provide a significant resource for innovation. The new facilities
which are used by community groups and commercial entities as well as for core teaching allow students and
visitors to work alongside each other. The pandemic curtailed this hive of activity for most of the year, but the
myriad ways that our students and staff have connected online with each other, our local community and the
theatre industry is testament to the creative and innovative spirit at the heart of Mountview. Community and
commercial use of the building began again as lockdown restrictions began to be lifted during Spring 2021.

Impact and Achievements

Academic Programmes

2020/21 was another busy and successful year for Mountview across all academic programmes, in spite of the
continuing challenges posed by the pandemic. Student applications increased from 4207 in 2019/20 to 5012 in
2020/21. The total enrolment across all years of study in 2020/21 was 490 full-time students (2019/20 - 458)
and 49 part-time students (2019/20 - 30). Total enrolment for the academic year 2021/22 has risen to 553.
We have therefore achieved our ambition of 550 students per year experiencing the excellence of
Mountview’s dramatic training.

Retention of students remains excellent and when the occasional student interrupts their study it is nearly
always for medical reasons and they regularly return to complete in the following September. Levels of
student withdrawals or interruptions of study rose slightly from 1% of total enrolment in 2019/20 to 2% in
2020/21, but this still remains very low. External examiners’ reports commend the standards achieved by
students and the robust assessment systems in place.

All higher education courses are validated by UEA with whom we continue to have an excellent working
relationship. The revalidation of the MA Musical Direction and MA Theatre Directing courses took place in
2020 and gained commendations from the external panel and UEA. Both our MA Performance pathways
(Acting and Musical Theatre) are currently undergoing the revalidation process with the Revalidation Event to
be held in June 2022. Next academic year, we will be revalidating FdA/BA Theatre Production Arts (Lighting,
Sound and Stage Management pathways) and FdA/BA Scenic Art and Prop Making.

As noted above, students in receipt of DaDA funding complete the Diploma in Professional Acting or
Professional Musical Theatre validated by Trinity College, London and additionally complete their BA
Performance, gaining two NQF level 6 awards. Again, Trinity College are a supportive and engaged partner in
the management of these awards.

Mountview’s one-year Foundation Courses in Musical Theatre and in Acting continue to be successful in
preparing students for full time training.

Quality Assurance

As noted above, Mountview continues to achieve excellent results in all inspections and ongoing metrics
required by external validation partners and quality assurance agencies. Mountview has also met all its
regulatory obligations to the Office for Students (OfS) in the year, including submission of all statutory data
returns to the Higher Education Statistics Agency (HESA).

Our previous Learning, Teaching and Assessment Strategy was completed in 2018/19, a year earlier than
planned, in part due to the move to our new Peckham premises. There were six priorities: Championing
Innovation, Collaboration, Industry Ready Graduates, Lifelong Learning, Using Technology and Supporting
Learning. The creation of a new strategy was started in 2019/2020, and this development phase has been
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extended into 2021/22, due to the pandemic. The quality of teaching continues to be assessed internally as an
ongoing part of staff development and support. There is a strong culture of peer to peer observations in
addition to discipline specific observations and cross department observations.

Student Support

Training at Mountview requires a strong financial and emotional commitment from students, together with a
robust academic and physical work ethic. Even before the added challenges posed by the pandemic, we had
continued to see an increase in the need for student support across all these areas; and of course this has
been exacerbated by pandemic-related anxiety and social isolation.

Mountview has strong pastoral care provision through our network of Personal Tutors and our Student
Welfare Manager. During the year we have maintained a significantly increased capacity in our student
counselling service, offering students a choice of four counsellors from diverse cultural backgrounds and with
varied therapeutic approaches. As noted above, we have also significantly increased our levels of student
financial support to help students in need navigate through this difficult period.

Artistic Programme and Events

Though originally intended for public audience presentation, the majority of the year’s public facing work was
eventually presented, fully-staged, to Covid-secure empty houses, with performances filmed and streamed to
assessors and agents and industry professionals. Work included established and new classics — Hamlet,
Bernstein and Sondheim’s Candide, Jonathan Larson’s Rent and Mother Clap’s Molly House by Mark Ravenhill —
alongside the UK premiere of Beneatha’s Place by Mountview Artistic Associate Kwame Kwei Armah.

We welcomed our first cohort for the part-time MA Theatre for Community and Education and launched The
Mountview Prize. This prize celebrates trailblazers who inspire social change and whose lived experience is an
inspiration. The inaugural winner was Dawn Walton, director and founder of Eclipse the UK’s foremost Black-
led theatre production company, who delivered an acceptance speech encouraging young creative
practitioners to make their own space.

Graduate Outcomes - Academic

Learning progression for 2020-21 is once again at a high level, evidenced in the final degree classifications all
our students. Students arriving at the academy with little or no prior attainment all achieve well with 100%
students receiving final awards. Student achievement rates remain consistently high at Mountview. 99% of BA
graduates achieved a First class and Upper Second class degree classification, a 3% increase on the previous
year, and 99% of postgraduate degrees were achieved at Distinction or Merit, an increase of 3% on the
previous year. Our graduation ceremony for 2019/20 and 2020-21 leavers took place in November 2021 at the
Gillian Lynne Theatre. It was a joyous occasion to celebrate the achievements of these two student cohorts.

Students in this year were nominated for and awarded scholarships and bursaries from the following: Andrew
Lloyd Webber Foundation Scholarship, Sir John Gielgud Charitable Trust, Lilian Baylis Award, Laurence Olivier
Bursary, Lionel Bart Foundation, South Square Trust, and Leverhulme Trust.

Graduate Outcomes - Professional

Future careers guidance for Mountview students is led by our Industry Liaison and Professional Development
Manager. During their second year of study, all BA performance students receive a range of industry led classes
covering many practical aspects of working in the performing arts industry. During the third year of study, the
Industry Liaison and Professional Development Manager takes on a vital one-to-one role with students,
supporting them throughout their public performances and showcases and dealing with individual agent
interest, signings, auditions and casting. This year, third year BA Performance students were again also able to
receive Industry Panels with leading industry specialists, as well as several Mountview exclusive podcasts with
prominent directors, musical directors, casting directors and other industry professionals.

Bespoke industry liaison support is also given to Theatre Production Arts and Postgraduate Practitioner students
(Producers, Directors and Musical Directors), who also receive additional support from their Heads of Course
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and other departmental staff. Postgraduate Performance students also received mock audition panels with
directors, musical directors, casting directors.

Third year students performed as guests in external high profile events, including the Magic at the Musicals gala,
Best of the West End Gala (both at the Royal Albert Hall), as well as various private events. Our third year MT
students will also appear at the Stephen Sondheim Tribute Gala, Old Friends at the Sondheim Theatre in May
2022.

Our agent signings continue to be excellent with 98% of 2021 BA Performance students and 88% of 2021
Postgraduate Performance students signing with agents. The Industry Liaison Manager continues to assist in
agent and industry support for all Mountview alumni.

Whilst the entertainment industry slowly returns to a pre-Covid normality, this has inevitably impacted on
graduates gaining professional work. However, 64% of 2021 BA graduates have already obtained professional
work in their first six months since graduating, within theatre (including the RSC and the Royal National
Theatre), television (including BBC and Netflix) and major feature films.

Notable professional highlights for 2021 graduates include:

e Ben Joyce landing the leading role of Jerry in Jersey Boys (West End) and Sha Dessi playing Eponine in
the West End production of Les Miserables, with Nathania Ong, Daniel Luiz, Haroun Al Jeddal and
Ayesha Patel also making their West End Debuts in musical theatre.

e On regional musical tours, Lucy Mundan stars in Footloose, and Myles Miller stars in Carol King’s
Beautiful. At the Almeida, Maia Tamrakar starred in Spring Awakening, whilst Issey King took over
the lead role in Running with Lions at the Lyric Hommersmith.

e Also in drama, Tom Page was in Small Island at the RNT, Taya Ming played Hero in Much Ado About
Nothing at RSC and on the BBC Iplayer, Shahbaaz Khan played the leading role in Road for Northern
Stage Company and Jasper Ryan Cater appeared in Sundown Kiki at the Young Vic and transferred
with the production to New York.

e In film and television, Brandon Bendell played a leading role in the film Silver Haze and in The Devils
Hour on TV, Maceo Cortezz appeared in The Continental (TV), Violetta Valverde appeared in the
feature Living, and Tashinga Bepete appears in the feature films The Railway Children and Bat Girl,
and Ben Joyce appears in the Netflix drama The Power.

Public and Community Benefit

In shaping our objectives for the year and planning our activities, the Trustees have considered the Charity
Commission's guidance on public benefit. Mountview offers a diverse portfolio of full and part time courses,
enabling people of all ages and backgrounds to enrich their knowledge, skills and experience of the theatre
arts sector.

The ongoing pandemic deeply impacted our short courses and outreach work. While we were unable to offer
in person activities we continued to develop and deliver on-line training courses and opportunities.

GENERATION N*XT- Young People’s Work:

As young people’s work and progression routes into higher education/vocational training are central to our
work, the GENERATION NX*T programme continued online, ensuring maintained engagement for local young
people. Whilst we were unable to maintain in-person numbers from previous years we achieved 190 enrolments
across the year, with 94 of these receiving a Southwark Young People’s Bursary from Mountview to subsidise
fees. The content and structure of the sessions adapted to the online environment, and feedback showed
sessions provided a vital creative engagement through the pandemic lockdowns.

Outreach, Adult programmes & Bespoke Activities:
During the ongoing pandemic, in person outreach work with local schools and community groups and the
adult evening class programme was paused. However, we delivered a range of bespoke online programmes
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for adults. This included audition preparation courses which delivered to 119 participants and also provided 9
scholarship/free places to local residents or those from currently under-represented groups. We also delivered
an online Unlocking Shakespeare workshop as part of New Earths Summer Academy.

BA Scouting Outreach Scheme:

Recognising that there is a significant pool of talent who would not traditionally consider drama training to be
accessible, we work with a nationwide network of scouting partners — from youth clubs to arts centres — to
find diverse applicants across the country. Those identified receive free auditions and support, removing initial
barriers and ensuring we develop the very best young artists irrespective of social, financial or cultural
background.

Despite drama school auditions moving online we had another successful year with this scheme, working with
a range of youth theatre partners to offer free auditions for nominated participants. From 48 partner
organisations we auditioned 49 applicants, of which 11 were taken through to the recall audition stage and 3
were offered places on our BA programmes.

Our outreach work for our Theatre Productions Arts courses has also significantly expanded this year. Using
the scouting network and developing relationships with several other schools and colleges, we are seeing
steady increases in the numbers and diversity of applicants to these courses.

Engagement with Mountview Productions:

We were unable to invite a local audience to watch our third year productions in person, however we were
able to engage local schools with filmed production of an all-male Macbeth, and all-female Hamlet. In total
400 young people watched the productions as part of their studies at school.

Business Planning — ‘New Model Drama School’

As part of the capital project to build our new premises, Mountview produced a 35-year business plan to
support its planned operations in these premises and evidence its ability to service and repay the loan
financing provided by London Borough of Southwark — this plan was scrutinised and approved by the Trustees
and Southwark Council and independently reviewed by external consultants.

Our resulting new business model has seen us increasing student numbers (full time and part time) to 550,
whilst welcoming an increasing number of users of the building during evenings, weekends and school
holidays. The building has, at its heart, retained its primary focus as a vocational academy of excellence during
the academic year and is becoming a professional development and community skills learning centre out of
hours. The addition of a public facing, fit-for-purpose theatre has enabled us to deliver our world class
repertoire onsite, while opening our doors to the local community of Peckham and beyond. In future, it will
provide enhanced opportunities for apprenticeships and training in technical theatre practice.

New retail units and offices, together with opportunities for space hire, community classes and new vocational
training courses are generating additional income streams to support our charitable objectives; whilst the
growth curve of these income streams has been slower than originally planned, and has been further
restricted by Covid-19 limitations, we are confident that we have laid solid foundations which will allow these
income streams to grow rapidly once the pandemic recedes.

Loan interest started to be payable from October 2019 onwards, and for the first quarter to December 2019
we paid £227,749 interest, together with a capital repayment of £500,000. When the coronavirus struck, the
trustees opened a dialogue with London Borough of Southwark to negotiate a period of reduced interest and
capital payments on the loan, in order to mitigate the uncertainties of the situation and the potential
significant financial and operational risks faced by the Charity. LBS agreed to a generous set of measures.
which included:

e Suspension of payments of capital and interest until October 2022; with no interest accruing during

this period;
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e Extension of the loan term to 42 years (September 2051);

e Minimum annual payments from Mountview to the Council of £300,000, with effect from October
2022 for the full 42-year term; and

e Flexibility to overpay in any year.

As ever, the Trustees are immensely grateful to LBS for their continued support. This agreement has enabled
Mountview to weather the Covid-19 pandemic, and we are confident that we will be able to rebuild strongly
and deliver fully on the community benefits we are determined to bring to Peckham and the wider borough.

As part of Mountview’s move to larger premises and development of this new business model, the Trustees
approved a programme of investment in strategic and operational staff growth, in order to build the required
organisational capacity for success; these investments have begun to bear fruit and will reap further rewards
in future periods in terms of income growth and organisational effectiveness. The Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme continued to be a vital resource in the year to sustain our workforce and retain its skills and expertise
for the future

Business Planning — Core Objectives
The development and realisation of our new site and new business model has underpinned our continued
progress in achieving our core business planning priorities. The table below summarises progress against

these objectives over the last five years:

Business Planning Objective

Status — August 2021

Be recognised as one of the five top drama schools
in the UK with a reputation for innovation,
excellence and access within the theatre, arts and
training sectors and more broadly

Achieved - Mountview’s national and international
profile has developed significantly. We are a leader
in access to training, programme and curriculum
development, and community engagement.

Further strengthen links with the professional
theatre, film and broadcasting industries, sharing
ideas, resources and a spirit of innovation in
pursuit of excellence

Achieving - Mountview has continued to strengthen
links with these industries, most notably in theatre
in terms of commissioning, masterclasses etc.
Further developing our links in film, broadcasting
and digital will be carried forward to the next
planning cycle.

Move to newly refurbished premises following a
successful fundraising campaign

Achieved - Our new premises opened in the centre
of Peckham in September 2018, on time, on budget
and with our full fundraising target achieved.

Broaden and diversify our funding base with a view
to creating a secure and sustainable future and the
ability to further invest in student support and
facilities

Achieving - Our revenue fundraising and commercial
income strategies were building well before the
pandemic. We have seen these begin to grow back
strongly in 2021/22.

Simplify accountability requirements through a
strategic review of key funding, validating and
accrediting partners

Achieved — We signed a new five-year partnership
agreement in 2019 with UEA, who validate all our HE
provision. In addition, our Trinity Diploma was
revalidated in 2020.

Grow from just under 400 students to 600 over the
whole of our portfolio of training provision

Achieving — Domestic and international student
numbers have increased to over 550 students per
year. Our international summer school programme,
which has been impacted by Covd-19 travel
restrictions will come back on stream fully in 2022.

Develop and introduce a number of new
undergraduate and postgraduate programmes

Achieved — As noted above.
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Increase the number of international partners and
students and develop Mountview’s reputation
internationally

Achieved - The number of international fee paying
students enrolled rose from 6 in 2015/16 to 46 in
2019/20, thus achieving our strategic targets.

Continue to develop a diverse student population,
attracting staff and students from a wide range of
backgrounds and cultures.

Achieving - Diversity has been a key priority for
Mountview across this period. As noted above, we
have made good inroads into diversifying our
student base; we know we have more to do in terms
of our staff team, and we are in the process of
enacting a targeted strategy to address this.

Further expand and strengthen our education,
community and outreach programme, providing a
wide range of learning, training and work
opportunities, particularly in our local borough.

Achieving - We have successfully transferred and
grown our work with local young people and local
schools from Haringey to Southwark. New local
partnerships in Southwark have been successfully
developed, including our continuing strong
relationship with the local council.

Develop a programme that links our young
people’s work to our formal training programmes

Achieving — Our growing local community
programmes will provide a pipeline for applications
to our formal training programmes. Free auditions
and several training bursaries are now available for
local applicants and workshop participants.

Continue to capacity build and invest in staff
development as the growth in our activity requires
and resources allow

Achieving - We have invested heavily in building
capacity into our staff teams, from teaching through
to venue operations. We have increased wages for
our lower paid staff, and now all employees receive
at least London Living Wage. We are undertaking a
fuller review of our entire staff rewards and benefits
system, and continue to promote staff development.

Ensure that all aspects of our work, and the design
and use of our premises and facilities, equipment
and resources, are accessible and informed by the
need to move towards greater environmental
sustainability

Achieving - Our new Peckham site is fully accessible
and has a high BREEAM environmental rating.
Leading inclusive dance company Candoco recently
took up residency in the building. In 2019 we
engaged a local sustainability consultancy to analyse
and improve our carbon footprint. This work will
continue when we return fully to the building.

Business Planning — Looking Ahead

A new business planning cycle was started in 2019/20, with a view to approving a full new business plan for

2020/21 onwards. However, in view of the significant and continuing impact of the pandemic the decision was

taken to defer the start of this new business plan period to 2022/23. The financial year 2021/22 has been
focussed on consolidation of our student numbers and experience, and revitalising our community

programme, fundraising and commercial activities.

In preparation for the new business planning cycle, and in recognition of the Charity’s need to generated
increased income growth over the next 3-5 years, the Executive team presented a range of new income

generation proposals to the Trustees in December 2021. As our Peckham premises are already being utilised to

near capacity, the focus of these proposed projects is to generate income which is not reliant on building

space. Projects now moving forward to the development phase include regional Foundation level courses and

online learning.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Review of Financial Position

For the year ended 31 August 2021 Mountview reported net expenditure of £1,961,760, including a tax credit
provision of £79,023 in relation to Theatre Tax Relief. Non-cash charges to designated funds, for depreciation
and effective interest payable, amounted to £1,305,799. The remaining deficit of £653,477 relates largely to
the significant impact of the pandemic on both income and costs. As we come out of the pandemic this impact
is now reversing: Covid-related costs are falling away, commercial income streams are rebuilding and new
income generation projects are in development.

Total income of £7,249,174 has increased by £330,022 (5%) from 2019/20. This is mainly due to robust
student recruitment for the September 2021 intake. During the year, the charity has received £148,849 grant
income from the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. The main source of ongoing funding for the charity
continues to be tuition fees which contributed 86% of total income. £1,408,586 (23% of tuition income) was
received from the Education and Skills Funding Agency in the form of Dance and Drama Awards for individual
students.

Total expenditure of £9,289,987 has increased by £1,497,763 (19%) from 2019/20. This increase breaks down
as follows: reversal of Covid-19 related cost savings - £586,025, increase in effective loan interest charge -
£76,849, additional Covid-19 secure operating costs and other cost increases - £834,889. As noted in the
introduction to this report, we have agreed a variation to our loan agreement with the London Borough of
Southwark, which has reduced actual interest payments to zero during the year; however full effective interest
of £868,925 has still been charged to the designated fund.

Investment Policy

Under its Articles of Association, the charity has the power to make any investments that the Trustees see fit.
The charity's modest level of reserves requires an investment policy which prioritises accessibility of funds.
Two fixed notice deposit accounts, one requiring six months’ notice and the other twelve months’ notice, are
held with Close Brothers Treasury. At 31 August 2021 £1,471,531 was held in these accounts, which
represented 35% of Mountview’s total cash balances at that date. A 30-day notice treasury reserve account is
also held with Bank of Scotland, and cash funds surplus to day-to-day requirements are transferred to this
account where possible.

Reserves policy

The charity’s total reserves have reduced by £1,961,760 (43%) from 2019/20. Of this, £1,295,338 relates to
the designated fund, through which capital project depreciation and interest charges pass, and £659,459
represents the deficit for the year on unrestricted funds.

The charity had planned for a four-year deficit strategy on unrestricted funds, approved by the Trustees to
enable Mountview to capacity build and embed its new business model in its new premises. Whilst the first
phase of the Covid-19 pandemic reduced operating costs, resulting in a surplus on unrestricted funds in
2019/20, this financial year has seen significantly increased costs required to operate in a Covid-secure
environment. The resulting deficit leaves a balance of £94,444 on unrestricted funds at the end of the year.
The Trustees recognise that the charity continues to go through a period of significant change following
completion of the capital project and as it grows its new business model. As noted above, the existing financial
risks inherent in this growth have been exacerbated by the impact of the pandemic. The Trustees have
accordingly renegotiated the repayment terms of its loan with London Borough of Southwark in order to
protect its short to mid-term reserves position. Whilst this has significantly reduced the financial risk profile of
the charity, the Trustees are aware that general reserve levels are currently still much lower than they would
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wish. The Trustees continue to monitor the financial performance of the charity very closely, with a view to
reducing this risk profile further over time and growing general reserves over the next five years.

Further details of all reserve funds are shown in notes 20 and 21 to the accounts.
Going Concern

The activities of Mountview together with factors likely to affect its future development are set out within this
report. The financial position of Mountview, its cash flow and liquidity are summarised above and set out in
more detail in the Financial Statements and the supporting notes.

The Covid-19 pandemic and the resulting measures and restrictions in place in the UK since March 2020 have
resulted in a period of uncertainty, which has continued through this financial year and beyond. However, at
the time of writing this report, the pandemic has largely waned and relatively normal trading conditions have
resumed. The Trustees are aware that there will continue to be economic volatility for some time to come,
and that the Charity has significant income generation targets to achieve over the next 3-5 years. However,
their review of Mountview’s financial position, reserves levels, and future plans, together with the
renegotiation of the loan with London Borough of Southwark to provide a break in capital and interest
payments until October 2022, give the trustees confidence that the charity remains a going concern for the
foreseeable future. The Trustees consider Mountview’s current and forecast cash resources to be sufficient to
cover the working capital requirements of the Charity for at least 12 months from the date of signing this
financial report and financial statements.

As noted above, the Charity produced a 35-year business plan to support its operations in its new premises.
This included income, expenditure and cash flow projections, together with sensitivity analysis on both capital
and operating income levels. The plan is updated regularly and reviewed by the Trustees as part of the annual
budget approval process. It was updated in 2020 to include multiple scenario analyses to assess & manage the
impact of the pandemic on finances & operations. Updated financial performance reports and future forecasts
are provided regularly to the Finance and Planning Committee and the Board.

In view of the above review and control measures, the trustees consider there are no material uncertainties
about the Charity's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore believe that it is appropriate to
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Fundraising

Mountview is a registered charity, supported by philanthropic gifts from individuals, trusts and foundations,
statutory bodies and companies. Mountview’s Development team deliver all fundraising activities, supported
by the Executive team and Development Committee, overseen by the Board of Trustees.

Following the completion of our £6.5 million capital campaign, Mountview invested in development staff, with
a mandate to build on the terrific success of the capital campaign and establish a new revenue fundraising
function. Whilst the pandemic made establishing new income particularly challenging, donations from
philanthropic sources for revenue activity increased by 161% when compared to the previous financial year
(2020/21: £307,446; 2019/20: £117,740).

At the same time, work took place behind the scenes to devise and deliver new case for support materials,
implement fundraising systems and strategies, and build relationships with potential supporters to prepare for
future growth in fundraising actively, aligned to Mountview’s strategic priorities in the immediate and longer
term.

Alongside vital unrestricted income, restricted donations made a real impact supporting the following
initiatives in 2020/21:
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The Judi Dench Fund for Access to Drama Training
We believe that talent and potential should be the only requirements for entry, and that a person’s
circumstances should never prevent them from realising their potential. Yet it has never been more expensive
to train and with living costs increasing year-on-year and socio-economic divides continuing to widen, for
many, an education at Mountview is simply not possible without additional help. The Judi Dench Fund invests
in initiatives that break down barriers to drama training. In 2020/21 those initiatives comprised:

e Qur nationwide Scouting Network

e Scholarships and Bursaries

e Emergency Grants

e Welfare and Wellbeing support

The Judi Dench Fund is vital to ensuring students from all backgrounds can thrive at Mountview. For many,
help at this critical moment means the difference between flourishing in their studies and being unable to
sustain themselves throughout their training.

The André Ptaszynski Memorial Fund

André Ptaszynski was an award-winning producer held in the highest regard throughout UK theatre and the
international stage. A Trustee at Mountview from 2017 until his untimely death in July 2020, André brought
incredible experience, wisdom, wit and generosity to our Board and to Mountview as a whole.

Thanks to the extraordinary generosity of André’s family, friends and colleagues throughout theatre, film and
TV, the André Ptaszynski Memorial Fund was established to support emerging producers and young theatre
talent at Mountview. This restricted fund will be spent down over a number of years in support of three key
initiatives in André’s memory:

e The Judi Dench Fund

e The André Ptaszynski Prize for Producing

e The Ptaszynski Producer

Community Projects

Mountview stands on the corner of Peckham Square, in the heart one of London’s most vibrant communities.
We are committed to working with, and for, those that call Peckham and Southwark home, and believe the
arts have a vital role to play in community health, happiness and cohesion. Our community programmes and
projects ensure everyone has the chance to explore their creativity.

In 2020/21, restricted donations supported Generation N*xt, our flagship young people’s programme which
engages hundreds of young people from Southwark every week. Philanthropic donations enable Mountview to
provide bursaries for around half of all participants. Meanwhile, donations also supported a new Cultural
Education Partnership, delivered in partnership with South London Gallery, working with children and young
people in Peckham and surrounding areas.

Fundraising Regulation

Mountview strives for best practice in its fundraising activities. We are registered with the Fundraising
Regulator and follow the Code of Fundraising Practice. We are committed to being transparent with our
supporters and ensuring our fundraising is legal, honest and responsible. We aim to build and maintain solid
partnerships based on mutual understanding and shared values.

Mountview operates with a small internal Development team, and does not undertake street or telephone
fundraising. Whist we work hard to provide the best possible customer service and deliver to the highest
standards for all our supporters, we recognise that despite our best endeavours there may be times when we
fall short of their expectations. A Complaints Procedure is accessible on our website, and Mountview received
no complaints about its fundraising activities for the reporting period September 2020 to August 2021.

12



MOUNTVIEW

Thank you

We are incredibly grateful for the many individuals, grant-makers and organisations that supported
Mountview this year. Their support has made a direct and lasting impact on our students, artists and
community and we look forward to building on these relationships and partnerships in the coming year.

Risk Management

The Finance & Planning Committee has a specific delegated responsibility for identifying and monitoring
business, financial and other risk and reporting on these to the Board. The Board throughout this period has
given consideration to the major risks to which the charity is exposed and satisfied themselves that systems or
procedures are established in order to manage those risks.

The trustees undertake a detailed risk management strategy that comprises:
e Anannual review of the risks the charity may face;
e The establishment of systems and procedures to mitigate those risks identified; and
e The implementation of procedures designed to minimise any potential impact on the charity should

any of those risks materialise.

A comprehensive risk and opportunity management tool is reviewed at executive team meetings, Finance &
Planning Committee and Board meetings. This tool identifies risk mitigation factors currently in place and sets

out an action plan for further mitigation of risks.

The principal short term risks facing the charity, and mitigating actions. as follows:

Short Term Risk

Mitigation

There is a resurgence of Covid-19 within the
next twelve months, which reverses the
rebuilding of income streams and increases
operating costs.

The Trustees have negotiated a temporary halt in loan
interest and capital payments to ensure financial
headroom. There have also been subsequent deficit
reduction measures put in place.

Rapid rises in energy costs and the labour
market continue through the next 12-18
months, adding increased cost pressure to
already lean financial forecasts.

The Trustees have approved a series of new income
generation proposals, and the Executive team are
developing these to implement from 2022/23 onwards.

There are capacity issues in the building, with
academic, community and commercial
activities sometimes competing for uses of the
same spaces.

The Executive team are undertaking a full review of
building usage in order to set user protocols and
maximise space efficiency.

Staff have been stretched to capacity during
the pandemic, leading to a risk of burnout or
reduced performance.

The Executive team is improving staff terms and
conditions where possible, and engaging in projects to
raise staff voice and consultation.

Staff remuneration and benefits remain lower
than the trustees would wish, due to financial
constraints; steps continue to be taken to
improve these, but there is still a risk of
demoralised staff and staff churn.

A benefits improvement plan has been presented to the
Finance and Planning Committee and is reflection in
future budgets and plans. The Executive is consulting
on the proposal to reduce core weekly working hours.
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And the risks and mitigations in the mid to longer term are:

Mid to Long Term Risk

Mitigation

Longer term forecasts for commercial income
and new projects are not realised in full, thus
putting pressure on our income generation
business model and our ability to service debt
financing.

We have agreed a loan variation agreement with LBS,
which has significantly reduced our servicing costs in
the short term. Commercial income forecasts and
new income generation projects are regularly
reviewed by the Finance and Planning Committee.

Our revenue fundraising strategy does not
mature in the way modelled in the business plan,
resulting in a shortfall on income targets.

We have a clear fundraising strategy, with targets set
in consultation with the Development team. Capacity
has been built into this team. Performance is
regularly monitored by the Development and the
Finance and Planning Committees and adjusted where
necessary.

Student recruitment numbers are impacted by

economic, political or social factors, such as:

e regulation of student fees, and associated
availability of student loan financing

e changes to or withdrawal of DaDA funding

e shifts in the global HE market making the UK
and London a less desirable place to study.

Ongoing monitoring of developments in government
and regulatory policy flags potential issues at an early
stage. Lobbying is undertaken through a membership
of various representative sector bodies. Business plan
student recruitment numbers have so far been
achieved, but ongoing performance is monitored
regularly.

Income generation shortfalls lead to continued
underinvestment in our physical and human
resources, thus negatively impacting the student
experience and staff morale in the mid-term.

Income mitigation strategies above seek to prevent
this situation. Strong budget control and investment
in new, efficient work processes and technology will
contain overhead operating costs and allow for
targeted spend in staff and student-focused areas.

There are rising levels of student concerns and
complaints, both current and historical, across
the Higher Education and Drama Schools sector.
Potential reputational, financial and operational
risks to Mountview if we were exposed to serious
or multiple cases in this area.

Mountview has strong safeguarding policies and
procedures, and we are engaging additional external
expertise to improve these further. We have already
engaged external support for ongoing student
casework, and are expanding internal resources in the
student services area.

Compliance with internal and external regulations

The financial statements comply with current statutory requirements, the Articles of Association and the
Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice Applicable to charities preparing
their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (Charities SORP FRS 102) and the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (FRS 102). The statements and this report also include the information required by the Office for
Students’ accounts direction.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Organisational Structure

Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts is a company limited by guarantee and is a registered charity, number
274166. Its governing document is its Articles of Association.
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Mountview is managed by a Board of Trustees, chaired during the financial year by Dame Vikki Heywood CBE.
The chair was handed over to Dame Rosemary Squire in December 2021, following Dame Vikki’s retirement
from the Board. The Trustees are also directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law,
as well as being members of the company.

None of the directors has any beneficial interest in the company. As members of the company, each
guarantees to contribute £1 in the event of a winding up.

The Board meets five times per year. This includes an away day - a less formal meeting which involves taking a
longer strategic look at the organisation, its work and its plans for the future.

There were two standing sub-committees to the Board during this financial year:

e The Finance and Planning Committee meets two to three weeks before each board meeting and plays an
important part in the overall governance structure, giving advice to senior management on financial and
operational matters when required and assisting the Board with the fulfilment of its fiduciary duties. The
Committee was chaired by Andrew Parker during the financial year, with Dame Vikki Heywood and Sir
Brendan Barber as members. There are also two regular co-opted members on the committee, Ann
Cutting and Elizabeth Holden, and the facility to appoint further co-opted members as and when the
company requires specialist advice or strategic guidance.

e The Safeguarding Committee, chaired during the year by Laura Gander-Howe, addresses the
organisational, legal and societal focus on the areas of safeguarding and student welfare. The Committee
meets two to three times a year and ensures that the appropriate safeguarding policies, procedures and
controls are in place and operating effectively.

There were also two committees/working groups with significant Board involvement:

e The Development Committee consisted of Dame Vikki Heywood, Lady Susan Chinn and Chair of Good
Relations PR Annie Fossey. The Development Committee met with the Development team and
Executive Director Sarah Preece monthly during the year to support fundraising activity at Mountview.

e A Black Lives Matter Working Group was also established in 2020 to oversee progress of our Black
Lives Matter Action Plan. Vikki Heywood, Giles Terera, Benjamin Lafayette, Johnson Situ and Laura
Gander-Howe were joined on this group during the year by the joint Chief Executives and other staff
members.

Day-to-day management at Mountview was delegated during the financial year to the joint Chief Executives:
Stephen Jameson, Principal & Artistic Director, and Sarah Preece, Executive Director. They managed all other
staff members via the executive team.

The executive team comprised Jeremy Smeeth, Chief Operating Officer; Sally Ann Gritton, Director of
Academic Affairs & Head of Undergraduate Performance; Andy Franks, Venue & Estates Director; Matthew
Turnbull, Commercial Director; and Charlotte Castle, Development Director.

The executive team meets once a month to progress managerial and executive business, and formal records
are taken of these meetings. During this year the executive team continued to meet at least twice per week to
act as an incident control team to steer Mountview’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

During the year Stephen Jameson and Sarah Preece announced their decision to stand down from their roles
in December 2021. Having reviewed the Charity’s management structure and future needs, the Trustees
decided to recruit a singular Artistic Director and Chief Executive Officer, supported by a restructured
Executive team. Abigail Morris, former Artistic Director of Soho Theatre and Chief Executive of the Jewish
Museum London, was appointed to this new role and took up the position in January 2022.
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Appointment and Retirement of Trustees

It is Mountview’s policy to appoint board members who possess a wide variety of skills, experience and
expertise that enable them to provide the organisation with the best possible oversight, governance and
guidance. The aim is to create an authoritative, diverse and informed board in terms of education, training,
business affairs and involvement in the theatre industry.

There were two board appointments during the year:

Dame Rosemary Squire was appointed in February 2021 and took over as Chairman of the Board in December
2021. Dame Rosemary is co-founder, Joint CEO and Executive Chair of Trafalgar Entertainment.

Helen Enright was appointed in July 2021 and took over as Chair of the Finance and Planning Committee in
December 2021. Helen is CEO of London Theatre Direct, Chief Operating Officer of Trafalgar Entertainment
and Chairman of Trafalgar Entertainment’s educational activities.

These appointments further augment an already strong board of trustees with an appropriate range of
expertise.

There was one board retirement during the year. In February 2021, Vincent Wang left the Board after a
maximum nine-year term. Vincent led the charge to find Mountview a new home. His contribution was
instrumental in establishing our new home in the heart of Peckham. He brought expertise, wisdom and good
humour to his role as Chair of the Capital Committee and steered the project and the Board through the maze
of issues posed by such a large scale capital project. That the building was completed in record time (17
months), and on budget (c.£30m), is a testament to his astute brilliance and tenacity. Mountview has a new
home, the benefits of which will be felt for generations to come and we are extremely indebted to Vincent for
that legacy.

There were three board resignations and two board retirement after the year end:

Dame Vikki Heywood resigned from the Board in December 2022 after nine years as a Trustee and eight years
as Chairman. Mountview is deeply indebted to Dame Vikki for her immense contribution to the Charity. She
has led the Board and the Charity with determination and passion but also with pragmatism and sensitivity,
guiding Mountview through the most significant period of change in its history. Again instrumental in realising
the capital project, particularly in leading on fundraising £6.5m from a standing start, she also transformed the
membership of the Board and worked closely with the Executive team on a wide variety of strategic initiatives
which have greatly raised the profile of Mountview and the quality of its work.

Andrew Parker also resigned from the Board at the same time and after a similar length of service. As Chair of
the Finance and Planning Committee, Andrew also played a key role in leading Mountview through this period
of change and development. His perceptive financial insight, coupled with a realistic and supportive approach
over a wide range of issues, proved invaluable to guide the Charity through the challenges of the capital
project and the turbulence of the pandemic.

Lady Susan Chinn resigned from the Board in January 2022, but remains on the Development Committee, for
which Mountview is very grateful. Trevor Jackson retires from the Board in April 2022, having supported
Mountview over the last three years with valuable industry knowledge and insight. And Ben Lafayette also

retires from the Board in April 2022, having completed his singular term of office as alumni member.

The Trustees and Executive team thank all these departing trustees for their time, effort, support and wisdom.
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Induction and Training of Trustees

New trustees are provided with information on their role and responsibilities as a trustee, together with a
copy of the Articles of Association and the latest audited Report and Financial Statements. They meet with the
Chairman, other trustees and executive team members to gain insight into the operations of the charity before
being formally invited to join the Board of Trustees. Trustees are kept up to date as appropriate with
developments within the charity and the sector.

Key Policies

Staff and Remuneration

Mountview continues to operate with a relatively small number of dedicated and skilled core staff, augmented
by a larger network of sessional tutors and freelance industry professionals. Total staff costs were 46% of total
overall expenditure (not including freelance staff whose costs are accounted for under and production and
other education costs).

Mountview is committed to paying our staff fairly for the work that they do, whilst recognising that the charity
operates with limited financial resources. The Trustees approved a 1.5% increase to core staff salaries in
September 2019, but were unable to offer a similar increase in 2020 due to the financial pressures of the
pandemic. The Trustees reinstated general staff salary increases in 2021, with rates ranging from 1-2% and
favouring our lower paid staff. Through accessing the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS), Mountview
has been able to continue to safeguard a significant number of staff roles which may otherwise have been at
risk of redundancy. Throughout all periods of employment furlough, Mountview has topped up salaries and
wages beyond the level of CJRS support to 100% of pre-pandemic levels.

Mountview offers pensions in line with current automatic enrolment legislation, together with other benefits
such as season ticket loans and access to the childcare vouchers and cycle to work schemes. We are currently
reviewing our overall staff remuneration and benefits package to see if improvements can be made.

The remuneration and benefits of the charity’s key management personnel are decided by the Trustees on
recommendation from the Finance & General Planning Committee. Key management personnel salary levels
are regularly benchmarked against industry market rates and annual increases are in line with those awarded
to all core staff.

Mountview’s continuing professional development policy supports and encourages staff to undertake
professional assignments, commissions and training. This has proved effective in developing staff across the
organisation. Staff-wide training and information sharing is delivered through staff and team meetings
throughout the year; these meetings have continued online during the pandemic period.

Mountview is committed to open, regular communication and consultation with its employees, to ensure that
the views and concerns of staff are taken into account when making decisions which are likely to affect their
interests. Staff meetings, feedback from departmental meetings and an open-door management and HR
policy are key tools in this process.

Health and Safety

The Health and Safety Committee is made up of staff representatives from each area of the organisation and is
chaired by Andy Franks (Director of Venue & Estates). Regular health and safety reports are presented and
relevant matters discussed at these meetings.

An annual health and safety report is presented to the Board by an external health and safety consultant.
Interim reports are sent to the Finance & Planning Committee, highlighting accident and near miss reports
received and any health and safety issues raised by the committee or executive team. The minutes from the
Health & Safety Committee are sent to the executive team meeting. Minutes of these meetings are also
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circulated throughout the organisation for discussion on various staff and student meeting agendas.
Mountview also undertakes an annual health and safety audit, conducted by an external company;
improvement recommendations from these audits inform the committee action plan for the forthcoming year.

Safeguarding
Mountview Academy believes that the health, welfare and safety of children and adults (vulnerable and non-

vulnerable) is of paramount importance and that all people without exception have a human right to be
protected from abuse of any kind regardless of age, gender, ethnicity, disability, sexuality, gender identity,
lifestyle or religious beliefs. As noted above, Mountview has a Safeguarding Committee to ensure that
effective safeguarding policies and procedures operate across the organisation. This includes the Prevent duty
for higher education institutions to have due regard to the need to prevent people being drawn into terrorism.
An internal safeguarding working group supports the Safeguarding Committee in its responsibilities. Effective
safeguarding begins with staff being well informed, being aware of safeguarding issues, and following agreed
procedures. During the year Mountview trustees and staff members have continued to receive relevant
safeguarding training. Staff members are required to report any concerns of potential risk to self/others or of
abuse immediately through the procedures outlined in Mountview’s safeguarding policy. All concerns of
potential risk and allegations of abuse are taken seriously by Mountview and responded to appropriately and
sensitively.

At the start of the year, as part of the student induction week programme, staff and external professionals
provide excellent guidance to students on how to maintain their personal safety, look after their physical and
mental health, work safely in practical workshops, and maintain a professional profile online.

Child Protection

Mountview’s child protection policy continues to be put into practice to ensure the safety and welfare of all
young people participating in Mountview activities. Child protection is overseen by the Safeguarding
Committee and led on a day to day basis by our designated Child Protection Officer. We have regular training
sessions for all staff who work with young people, reminding them of their responsibilities when it comes to
safeguarding young people and how best to report any issues or concerns.

Equality and Diversity

Mountview fulfils its core charitable aims by offering a diverse portfolio of full and part-time courses and
workshops, enabling people of all ages and backgrounds to enrich their knowledge, skills and experience of the
theatre arts sector.

Our Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy sets out our commitment to creating an environment where
diversity is celebrated and equality of opportunity is embedded for all students and staff regardless of race,
ethnicity, gender, disability, age, sexual orientation, belief or religion. Our aim is for our staff and student
bodies to be truly representative of all areas of society. We are committed to tackling inequality in all its
forms, and to both meet and exceed current obligations under legislation. By doing more than is required by
law we will continue to build on Mountview’s current reputation and practice as a diverse and truly inclusive
arts training institution.

In 2020 the Black Lives Matter Movement focussed attention on the need to actively challenge systemic and
endemic prejudice, exploitation and intersectional oppression. We published the following Black Lives Matter
Statement of Intent and Action Plan in June 2020 to enact and accelerate change.

Train and Educate: Ensure all permanent and visiting staff and students are educated about systemic and
endemic racism, inequality and unconscious bias.

Represent: Actively recruit and draw upon the expertise of Black and minority communities and
review how we engage students to represent and promote Mountview.

Listen: Improve Mountview’s formal and informal complaints and reporting procedures and

conduct them in a culture of transparency.
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Support and Connect: Establish a safe environment for students to be supported and ensure we connect all
our communities.

Advocate: Work as an institution with peer drama schools and cultural industry partners to tackle
racism, inequality and injustice.

This statement is a commitment we have made to all underrepresented groups and to those who have
experienced prejudice and discrimination.

We have made good progress with our action plan throughout the financial year and up to the publication of a
final progress report in December 2021. We know there is much more still to be done, and this will become
one of the key pillars of our new Equality, Diversity and Inclusion strategy, which is currently being developed.

Our students are actively recruited from a diverse range of backgrounds via initiatives such as regional and
local scouting and nationwide workshops and auditions. Mountview recruits one of the highest percentages of
Global Majority students in the UK drama school sector; over 45% of on the three-year acting programme and
25% across all undergraduate programmes. Over 70% of our UK undergraduate students came from state
secondary school. We continue to strive to further improve on these statistics going forward, particularly with
regard to the diversity of our musical theatre student cohort, where some good progress has already been
made.

We also ensure that we offer equality of opportunity across each student cohort and it is evident amongst
students that they relish the opportunities afforded them by being in a group that has a mixed demographic.
Staff selection of plays and musicals takes into account this demographic and responds to what is an ever-
changing mix of young adults from a wide range of backgrounds. Casting is allocated on the basis of student
suitability for role and is irrespective of disability or ethnic origin. Gender balance is considered in the selection
of materials to ensure that there are sufficient opportunities for all.

Equality of opportunity is also embedded in our staff recruitment, retention and development policies, in line
with the Equalities Act 2010. Reasonable adjustments are fully considered during recruitment, appointment
and employment, and training and career development opportunities are provided as for all employees.

Internal Control

The Trustees retain overall responsibility for the charity’s system of internal control, recognising that such
controls can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against fraud and irregularities. Controls are
set up to safeguard the charity’s assets and ensure that the company is operating efficiently and effectively
whilst achieving best value in relation to its expenditure.

The charity’s controls include documented accounting procedures and a clearly defined framework of
delegation of authority from the Trustees to the Chief Executives and onwards to senior staff. The annual
budget is approved in advance each year by the Trustees and financial reports, highlighting any actual and

projected variances of outcome against budget, are presented to each board meeting

The Trustees’ annual report and strategic report (in their capacity as company directors) were approved by the
Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

\\/j)%\}}?/\\ N

Dame Rosemary Squire, Chairman

28 April 2022
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Moutview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The trustees (who are also directors of Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Ltd for the purposes of company law)
are responsible for preparing the trustees’ annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of the income resources and application of resources,
including the income and expenditure of the charitable company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the trustees are required to:
+ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
+ Observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;
* Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
» State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements and;
» Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charity will continue to operate.

The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the charity and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

Each of the trustees has confirmed that there is no information of which they are aware which is relevant to the
audit, but of which the auditor is unaware. They have further confirmed that they have taken appropriate steps to
identify such relevant information and to establish that the auditors are aware of such information.

20



Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited (‘the company’) for the year ended
31 August 2021 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Summary Income and Expenditure Account, the
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting

Standards, including FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:
+ give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its incoming resources
and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;
» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

And in our opinion in all material aspects:
+ funds administered by Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited for specific purposes during the year ended 31 August
2021 have been applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation;
+ funds provided by the Education and Skills Funding Agency have been applied in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Accounts Direction and any other terms and conditions attached to them during the year ended 31 August
+ the requirements of the OfS's Accounts Direction have been met.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable company's ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
+ the information given in the strategic report and the trustees’ annual report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
+ the strategic report and the trustees’ annual report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the trustees’ annual report.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited (Continued)

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:
+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or
+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
+ certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 20, the trustees (who are also the directors
of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the charitable company’s
internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the trustees.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the charitable company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

The objectives of our audit in respect of fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatement
due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to those assessed risks; and to respond
appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit. However, the primary responsibility for the
prevention and detection of fraud rests with both management and those charged with governance of the charitable company.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited (Continued)

Our approach was as follows:
* We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the charitable company and
considered that the most significant are [the Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act 2011, the Charity SORP, and UK
financial reporting standards as issued by the Financial Reporting Council]

* We obtained an understanding of how the charitable company complies with these requirements by discussions with
management and those charged with governance.

* We assessed the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, including the risk of material misstatement due
to fraud and how it might occur, by holding discussions with management and those charged with governance.

* We inquired of management and those charged with governance as to any known instances of non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations.

+ Based on this understanding, we designed specific appropriate audit procedures to identify instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. This included making enquiries of management and those charged with governance and
obtaining additional corroborative evidence as required.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or
through collusion.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to any party other than the charitable company and charitable company's members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Devonshire House
60 Goswell Road

James Saunders (Senior Statutory Auditor) London EC1M 7AD
for and on behalf of Moore Kingston Smith LLP, Statutory Auditor Date: 5 May 2022
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Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Statement of Financial Activities
(Incorporating an Income and Expenditure Account)
For the year ended 31st August 2021

2021 2020
Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment  Total Total
Notes Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds
£ £ £ £ £ £
Income from
Generating funds:
Donations and legacies 2 292,328 - 320,117 - 612,445 700,078
Income from investments 4 8,971 - - 4,074 13,045 22,079

Charitable activities:

Education income 5 6,415,157 - - - 6,415,157 5,958,191
Other income 6 208,527 - - - 208,527 238,804
Total income 6,924,983 - 320,117 4,074 7,249,174 6,919,152

Expenditure on
Raising funds:

Fundraising costs 8 107,247 - - - 107,247 106,950
Charitable activities:

Education costs 8 7,620,087 1,308,283 162,610 91,730 9,182,710 7,685,244
Total expenditure 7 7,727,334 1,308,283 162,610 91,730 9,289,957 7,792,194
Net income / (expenditure) (802,351) (1,308,283) 157,507 (87,656) (2,040,783) (873,042)
Transfer between funds 21 63,869 12,945 (76,814) - - -
Other recognised gains:

Tax Credit 23 79,023 - - - 79,023 96,618
Net movement in funds (659,459) (1,295,338) 80,693 (87,656) (1,961,760) (776,424)
Fund balances brought forward 754,403 3,539,592 106,465 191,545 4,592,005 5,368,429
Fund balances carried forward 94,944 2,244,254 187,158 103,889 2,630,245 4,592,005

Full comparatives for 2020 are shown in note 26.
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Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st August 2021

Fixed Assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current Assets

Debtors

Current asset investment - cash on deposit
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: Amounts falling due
within one year

Net Current Assets

Creditors: Amounts falling due
after one year

Total Net Assets

Funds
Restricted funds
Endowment funds
Unrestricted funds:
Designated
Other unrestricted

Note

12
13

14

14

15

21
21

20
20

2021 2021
£ £

30,480

29,020,233
3,879,309
1,471,531
2,738,569
8,089,409

(8,000,297)
89,112

(26,509,580)

2,630,245

187,158
103,889

2,244,254
94,944

2,630,245

Approved by the Trustees on 28 April 2022 and authorised for issue

and signed on their behalf by:

N S
\%ﬁ\%@//m L
Dame Rosemary Squire, Director

Company number 01019858
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2020 2020
£ £

45,720

29,386,853
3,912,593
1,456,445
2,764,432
8,133,470
(7,373,670)

759,800

(25,600,368)

4,592,005

106,465

191,545

3,539,592

754,403

4,592,005



Net cash used in operating

activities

Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 August 2021

Notes

Cash flows used in investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Movement to cash on deposit

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows provided by financing activities

Cash inflow from new borrowings
Cash outflow on repayments
Interest paid on borrowings

Net cash provided by financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents

in the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents

at the beginning of the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents

at the end of the reporting period

2021

55,466

(79,288)
(15,086)
13,045

(81,329)

(25,863)

2,764,432

2,738,569
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2020
£
183,947

(582,918)
(19,019)
22,079

(579,858)
673,877
(500,000)
(227,749)

(53,872)

(449,783)

3,214,215

2,764,432



Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31st August 2021

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net income

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets

Interest receivable

Interest payable

Increase in debtors

Increase/(decrease) in creditors

Other recognised gains and losses - taxation credit receivable

Analysis of net cash balances

Cash at bank and in hand
Notice deposits (of less than 3 months)

Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash & cash equivalents
Loans falling due within one year
Loans falling due after more than one year

Total
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2021 2020
£ £
(2,040,783) (873,042)
15,240 15,240
445,909 446,330
(13,045) (22,079)
868,925 767,780
33,284 (496,241)
666,914 249,341
79,023 96,618
55,466 183,947
2021 2020
£ £
2,724,757 2,750,620
13,812 13,812
2,738,569 2,764,432
Opening Cash flows Closing
£ £ £
2,764,432 (25,863) 2,738,569
23,698,549 - 23,698,549
26,462,981 (25,863) 26,437,118




Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st August 2021

Accounting Policies

Company Information
Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited is a company limited by guarantee domiciled and incorporated
in England and Wales. The registered office is 120 Peckham Hill Street, London, SE15 5JT.

Basis of Accounting

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with FRS102, the Companies Act 2006 and under the
historical cost convention, and in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice Applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (Charities SORP FRS 102).

Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS102.

These accounts are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the charity, rounded to the
nearest pound.

Under section 405 of the Companies Act 2006 the Charity is exempt from the requirement to produce group
accounts on the basis that its two subsidiary undertakings, Mountview Arts Centre Limited and Mountview
Productions Limited, have nil net assets.

Preparation of accounts on a going concern basis

The trustees consider there are no material uncertainties about the Charity's ability to continue as a going
concern. The review of our financial position, reserves levels, future plans & renegotiatian of the loan with
London Borough of Southwark to extend the interest free period to 2022, gives trustees confidence the
charity remains a going concern for the foreseeable future.

As part of the development and delivery of the capital development project the Charity produced a 35-year
business plan to support its operations in the new premises. This included income, expenditure and
cashflow projections, together with sensitivity analysis on both capital and operating income levels. This plan
was scrutinised and approved by the trustees and Southwark Council and independently reviewed by
external consultants. The plan is updated regularly and reviewed by trustees as part of the annual budget
approval process. It has been updated this year to include scenario analyses to assess & manage the
impact of COVID on finances & operations.

The trustees consider Mountview’s current and forecast cash resources to be sufficient to cover the working
capital requirements of the Charity for at least 12 months from the date of signing this financial report and
financial statements.

Income
All income is accounted for once the Charity has entitlement to the income, the receipt is probable and the
amount of income can be measured reliably.

Tuition fees comprise the full fees payable by students. Where termly fees are invoiced in advance of the
period to which the fees relate, this income is carried forwards in the balance sheet as deferred income and
released to the SoFA in the term when the fees fall due.

Grants are recognised when they are receivable, unless there are conditions attached to the grant, in which
case they are recognised when the charity becomes unconditionally entitled to the income.

The charity receives grants from the Greater London Authority, the London Borough of Southwark and the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (Dance and Drama Awards ('DaDA")). These are disclosed in note 2
to the accounts. They are recognised as income once entitlement is unconditional and the amount can be
quantified.

Expenditure
All expenditure is included on an accruals basis and is recognised when there is a legal or constructive
obligation for payment to be made.

Costs are disclosed in the following categories

» Cost of charitable activities comprise the cost incurred by the charity in the delivery of its activities and
services and include grants made and an apportionment of the support costs of the organisation.

« Governance costs, which are a category of support costs, are the costs associated with the strategic
direction of the organisation and with meeting regulatory requirements.

« Support costs are those costs common to the range of activities of the organisation and are apportioned
on the basis of time occupied by the company's employees.
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Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st August 2021 (Continued)

1 Accounting Policies (continued)

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets costing more than £1,000 are capitalised at cost.

Fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to
write off the cost less estimated residual value of each asset over its expected useful life, as follows:

Intangible assets over 5 years

Leasehold property over the lease term, being 99 years (lease started 8 October 2018
Fixtures, fittings & equipment over 3 to 25 years

Motor vehicles 25% per annum on net book value

No depreciation is charged on assets in course of construction. Where assets are constructed as
part of a project for which specific identifiable assets are brought into service before the overall is
completed, such assets will be transferred from assets in course of construction to building
improvements for leasehold property or fixtures, fittings and equipment as appropriate and
depreciated from the date these are placed in service.

Fixed assets are subject to an annual impairment review and review of estimated useful life.

Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in hand and short term deposits with a
maturity date of three months or less.

Basic financial assets and liabilities

Basic financial assets, which included trade and other receivables and cash and cash balances, are
initially measured at transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost less any impairment.

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payable and bank loans are initially recognised at
transaction price. Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from supplies. There are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less. If not, these are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade
payables are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured as amortised cost.

Leasing Commitments

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged against income on a straight line basis over the
lease term.

Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

Employee Benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense. The cost of
unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are received.
Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the charity is demonstrably
committed to terminate the employment, or to provide termination benefits.

Pension Benefits

The pension costs charged in the accounts represent the contributions payable by the charity during
the year to a defined contribution pension scheme.
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Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st August 2021 (Continued)

Accounting Policies (continued)

Fund Accounting

The total funds of the charity are allocated to restricted, endowment, unrestricted and designated funds
based on the origins of the funds and the terms set by the donors.

Restricted funds are subject to specific restrictions imposed by the donor. These are accounted for
separately and the costs of raising and administering the funds are charged against them. Once the
restrictions imposed by the donor have been fulfilled the restricted funds are transferred to unrestricted
funds. If the restriction is fulfilled by the acquisition of capital assets, unrestricted funds may be designated
to reflect the value of the underlying asset now held within unrestricted funds.

Endowment funds are funds which have been given with the express intention of retaining those funds as
capital for the long term benefit of the charity. Where the trustees have the ability to spend the capital of the
fund this is treated as an expendable endowment fund.

Unrestricted funds are those which are not subject to restrictions, and may be applied in furtherance of any
of the charitable company's objectives.

Designated funds are unrestricted funds set aside by the Board of Directors for specific purposes.

Provisions

A provision is defined as a liability of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognised in accordance
with FRS 102 when the charitable company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
a reliable estimate of that obligation can be made and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material provisions are
recognised at a discounted rate.

Management of liquid resources

The charity has one main current account from which all day-to-day transactions take place. The balance of
this account is kept to a minimum to ensure that surplus funds are placed on short- to medium-term
deposits. The policy in managing cash is to maximise returns while minimising risk. Restricted funds have
separate bank accounts.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Recoverable value of fee debtors

The company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade and other debtors. When assessing
impairment of trade and other debtors, factors including the current credit rating of the debtor, the ageing
profile of debtors and historical experience are taken into account. Note 14 gives details of the net carrying
amount of debtors and the associated impairment provision.

Provisions

Provisions have been made for the dilapidation of the charity's previous rental premises. These provisions
are estimates and the actual costs and timing of future cash flows are dependent on future events. The
difference between expectations and the actual future liability will be accounted for in the period in which
such determination is made.

30



Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st August 2021 (Continued)

Donations and legacies

Grants, donations and gifts:
Operational activities
Capital project

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
292,328 - 307,172 599,500 475,526
- - 12,945 12,945 224,552
292,328 - 320,117 612,445 700,078

Included in grants, donations and gifts are the following amounts of governments grants: Education Funding
Agency in relation to the Dance and Drama Awards scheme - £87,061 (2020: £87,062), Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme - £148,849 (2020: £270,724), Department of Health and Social Care for cornovirus testing -
£56,144 (2020: £Nil). There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these government
grant income and the company has not benefitted from other government funded assistance.

Grant and fee income Unrestricted Designated Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds 2021 2020
Restated
£ £ £ £ £
Grant income - other bodies 292,054 - 158,940 450,994 582,208
Fee income - taught awards 5,489,552 - - 5,489,552 4,997,244
Fee income - non-qualifying courses 732,970 - - 732,970 687,345
6,514,576 - 158,940 6,673,516 6,266,797
Income for investments Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
funds funds funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
Interest receivable 8,971 - 4,074 13,045 22,079
Education Income
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
funds funds funds 2021 2020
Restated
£ £ £ £ £
Tuition income 6,222,522 - - 6,222,522 5,684,589
Community projects 86,590 - - 86,590 131,562
Auditions 106,045 - - 106,045 142,040
6,415,157 - - 6,415,157 5,958,191
Other Income
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
funds funds funds 2021 2020
Restated
£ £ £ £ £
Box office 2,386 - - 2,386 42,340
Rental income 164,749 - - 164,749 151,618
Fees and other income 41,392 - - 41,392 44,845
208,527 - - 208,527 238,803
Analysis of Total Expenditure
Direct Other Direct  Support Total Total
Staff Costs Costs Costs 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
Cost of generating funds:
Fundraising costs 106,950 297 - 107,247 106,950
Cost of charitable activities:
Education costs 2,384,060 4,784,302 2,014,349 9,182,710 7,685,244
Total 2020 2,491,010 4,784,598 2,014,349 9,289,957 7,792,194
Total 2019 2,140,716 4,064,746 1,586,732 7,792,194
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Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st August 2021 (Continued)

Total Costs

Staff costs (note 10)
Scholarships and bursaries
Accreditation and validation
Production

Other education costs
Office costs

Premises costs

Bank charges

Interest payable
Amortisation and Depreciation
Support Costs (note 8)

Total 2021
Total 2020

Support Costs

Staff costs (note 10)
Premises costs

Capital development costs
General expenses

Legal and professional fees
Audit fees

Auditors' fees - other services

Total 2021
Total 2020

Total Total
Fundraising Education  Governance 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
106,950 2,384,060 - 2,491,010 2,140,716
- 251,690 - 251,690 169,517
- 247,999 - 247,999 202,524
- 191,304 - 191,304 207,636
- 1,498,006 - 1,498,006 1,229,276
297 897,625 - 897,921 730,706
- 350,065 - 350,065 283,383
- 17,540 - 17,540 12,355
- 868,925 - 868,925 767,780
- 461,148 - 461,148 461,570
- 1,960,734 53,615 2,014,349 1,586,732
107,247 9,129,095 53,615 9,289,957 7,792,194
106,950 7,613,651 71,593 7,792,194
Total Total
Fundraising Education  Governance 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
- 1,866,585 21,903 1,888,488 1,517,573
- 43,559 - 43,559 42,497
- - 2,484 2,484 5,610
- - 7,920 7,920 829
- 50,589 - 50,589 2,806
- - 17,295 17,295 17,280
- - 4,013 4,013 137
- 1,960,734 53,615 2,014,349 1,586,732
- 1,515,139 71,593 1,586,732

Capital development costs relate to expenditure incurred on the capital building project which are not eligible
for capitalisation as tangible fixed assets.

Staff Costs
Number of employees

The average monthly number of employees during the year was:

Education

Administration and Student Support

Building/Venue Operations

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Pension costs

2021 2020
Number Number

107 105
25 37
68 49
200 191

2021 2020

£ £

3,806,067 3,295,600
330,731 279,710
165,725 98,330
4,302,523 3,673,640

In addition to employees paid through the payroll the company contracts with a number of individuals to
provide freelance services in support of the company's activities. The total incurred in the year was

£1,417,550 (2020: £1,079,677).

Included above are redundancy and termination payments of £14,241 incurred in the year (2020: £Nil).
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Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st August 2021 (Continued)

Staff Costs (continued)
The number of employees whose annual remuneration was £60,000 or more were:

2021 2020
Number Number
£60,000-69,999 3 2
£70,000-79,999 1 1
£80,000-89,999 2 2

Pension contributions totalling £36,515 were paid for the higher paid employees (2020: £25,069).

Key management personnel include the Trustees and members of the senior management team. There were 2
remunerated members of the senior management team during the year (2020: 2) whose aggregate pay and
benefits amounted to £214,775 (2020: £208,537).

At the year end included in creditors is unpaid pension commitments of £58,992 (2020: £37,776).
The reumeration package & ratio of basic & total remuneration for Heads of Provider is as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020

Executive Executive Principal & Principal &

Director Director Artistic Artistic

Director Director
Basic salary 82,002 82,002 82,002 82,002

Holiday pay - - 2,208 -
Employer pension contributions 13,433 8,200 9,068 7,259
Other taxable benefits - - 5,657 4,463

Non taxable benefits 11,482 4,380 - -
Total remuneration 106,917 94,582 98.835 93,724
Pay multiple against median basic salary 2.9 2.8 2.9 2.8
Pay multiple against median total remuneration 3.7 3.1 3.6 3.1

The remuneration package for the heads of proivder is set by the Board of Trustees. The Finance and Planning
Committee reviews this package anually, taking account of work perfromance in the year and benchmarking
against comparative reumeration levels in the drama school sector and across the wider performing arts. The
Committee recommends any adjustments to the remuneration package to the Board for annual approval.
Performance of the head of providers is monitoried by means of an annual appraisal and regular meetings
throughout the year with the Chair of the Board.

Trustees
Trustees of the charity did not receive remuneration for their activities in the current or prior year.

During the year, expenses reimbursed to one trustees in respect of off site meetings amounted to £84 (2020: One
trustee was reimbursed £292 in respect of travel costs).

Intangible Fixed Assets

Website Software 2021
Total
Cost £ £ £
Brought forward at 1st September 2020 28,836 47,364 76,200
Carried forward at 31st August 2021 28,836 47,364 76,200
Amortisation
Brought forward at 1st September 2020 11,534 18,946 30,480
Charge for the year 5,767 9,473 15,240
Carried forward at 31st August 2021 17,301 28,419 45,720
Net Book Value
At 31st August 2021 11,535 18,945 30,480
At 31st August 2020 17,302 28,418 45,720
Tangible Fixed Assets
Land and Fixtures, Motor 2021
buildings fittings & vehicles
leasehold equipment Total
Cost £ £ £ £
Brought forward at 1st September 2020 28,797,383 1,606,385 16,800 30,420,568
Additions 1,766 80,672 - 82,438
Disposals / Adjustments (3,150) - - (3,150)
Carried forward at 31st August 2021 28,795,999 1,687,057 16,800 30,499,856
Depreciation
Brought forward at 1st September 2020 581,201 442,800 9,714 1,033,715
Charge for the year 292,186 151,982 1,772 445,940
Released on disposal / adjustments (31) - - (31)
Carried forward at 31st August 2021 873,356 594,782 11,486 1,479,624
Net Book Value
At 31st August 2021 27,922,643 1,092,276 5,314 29,020,233
At 31st August 2020 28,216,182 1,163,585 7,086 29,386,853
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Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st August 2021 (Continued)

Debtors 2021 2020

£ £
Trade debtors 3,056,509 2,763,659
Bad debt provision (79,800) (72,393)
Other debtors 759,769 1,122,408
Prepayments and accrued income 142,831 98,919

3,879,309 3,912,593

Within other debtors are amounts of £Nil (2020: £250,000) which are due over one year.

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 2021 2020
£ £

Trade creditors 201,359 191,502
Deferred income 6,161,156 5,880,600
Social security and other taxes 114,625 94,694
Other creditors 363,032 421,206
Accruals 809,815 447,358
Provisions (note 14(b)) 350,310 338,310

8,000,297 7,373,670

Within other creditors amount amounts of £16,089, which are rental deposits due over one year.

Provisions Balance Amount Amount Balance
brought allocated released carried
forward in year in year forward

£ £ £ £

Provisions 338,310 12,000 - 350,310

338,310 12,000 - 350,310

The brought forward provisions relate to business related commitments in respect of lease dilapidations, the
expected settlement of which is due in the near future.

The new provision is in respect of an employee dispute that was settled post-year end.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after one year 2021 2020

£ £
Deferred income 169,703 129,416
Loan 23,698,549 23,698,549
Other Creditors 2,641,328 1,772,403

26,509,580 25,600,368

The loan balance above relates to a finance facility of up to £24.3m, made available by Southwark Council to the
charity to facilite the construction of new premises for the charity in Peckham, South London.

The facility agreement was signed on 14 September 2016. The charity has drawn against this facility throughout
the project construction phase, with interest at 4.5% payable from 1 October 2022 (renegotiated interest terms
this year). Under the current agreement, there is no fixed repayment schedule, but the outstanding balance must
be below £12.5m by 30 September 2043, and the facility is repayable in full by 2058. It is secured by means of a
legal charge over the new site and premises, together with a floating charge over the undertakings and assets of
the charity.

The facility is in two parts: Tranche A for £0.5m and Tranche B for up to £23.8m. Tranche A related to the
development phase of the project, and was fully drawn down by August 2017. Tranche B relates to the
construction phase of the project, and £24m of this tranche was drawn down at 31 August 2020. Tranche A was
originally repayable at first drawdown of Tranche B in September 2017 but has now been incorporated into
Tranche B. The full loan balance is therefore now clasified as due after one year.
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Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st August 2021 (Continued)

Movement on deferred income calculation Balance Amount Amount Balance
brought deferred released carried
forward in year in year forward

£ £ £ £

Deferred income < 1 year

Student deposits 187,697 112,068 (187,697) 112,068

Government grants - DaDA Funding 1,206,438 1,209,237 (1,206,438) 1,209,237

Tuition fees 4,486,465 4,839,851 (4,486,465) 4,839,851

5,880,600 6,161,156 (5,880,600) 6,161,156

Deferred income > 1 year
Student deposits 129,416 169,703 (129,416) 169,703

Total deferred income 6,010,016 6,330,859 (6,010,016) 6,330,859

Financial Instruments
The financial statements include the following in respect of items held at fair value at 31 August:

2021 2020
£ £
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 3,550,065 3,551,364
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 28,064,393 26,869,328

Share Capital
The liability of members is limited by guarantee to an amount not exceeding £1 per member. As at 31 August
2021, there were 12 members (2020: 11 members).

Commitments and entitlements under operating leases

Commitments
At 31 August 2021 the charitable company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

Land and buildings

2021 2020
£ £
Within one year 175,000 175,000
Between two and five years 700,000 700,000
In over five years 15,954,726 16,129,726

16,829,726 17,004,726

Lease payments of £175,000 were recognised as expenditure during the year (2020: £175,000).

The annual rent on the charity's new premises of £175,000 is subject to RPI increases every five years. The
total off balance sheet future liabiity is therefore likely to be significantly higher than stated above.

Entitlements
At 31 August 2021 the charitable company had outstanding entitlements for future minimum lease recipts
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

Land and buildings

2021 2020
£ £
Within one year 181,370 78,630
Between two and five years 1,093,423 282,593
In over five years 2,800,214 498,079
4,075,007 859,302
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Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st August 2021 (Continued)

Unrestricted Funds Balance Netincome/ Other Balance
brought (expenditure) recognised carried
forward  for the year gains Transfers forward

£ £ £ £ £

Designated Funds

New Building Fund 3,539,592  (1,308,283) - 12,945 2,244,254
3,539,592  (1,308,283) - 12,945 2,244,254

Other general unrestricted funds 754,403 (802,351) 79,023 63,869 94,944
4,293,995 (2,110,634) 79,023 76,814 2,339,198

The New Building Fund relates to the construction the charity's new premises in Peckham, South London. Capital project
income such as grants, donations and loan financing proceeds are transferred to this fund from restricted funds when the
terms of restriction are met. Project costs not eligible for capitalisation, such as fundraising and consultancy costs, are
charged to this fund when incurred. Depreciation on the new premises will be charged to this fund from commencement of

operation at the new premises over the remaining lifetime of the lease, until October 2117.

Restricted Funds

Gyearbuor Asante Memorial Prize
Diana Boddington Prize Fund
Town Centre Partnership Project
Luke Morton Award

Jack Petchey Foundation
Leverhulme Trust

Community Outreach
Scholarships Fund

Mountview Emergency Support Fund
Spencer Wills Trust

Generation N*xt

Cultural Education Partnership
Andre Ptaszynski Memorial Fund
Judi Dench Fund

Mountview at Peckham

Endowment Funds
The Peter Coxhead Scholarship

Balance Balance
Brought carried
Forward Income Expenditure Transfers Forward
£ £ £ £ £
2,918 - - - 2,918
4,751 - - 140 4,891
1,374 - - (1,374) -
4,000 - (1,000) - 3,000
1,032 2,250 (2,292) - 990
- 46,695 (46,695) - -
5,603 - - (5,603) -
34,669 47,995 (42,385) (9,041) 31,238
- - (9,634) 9,634 -
8,434 - (2,625) (3,523) 2,286
- 541 - (541) -
- 30,000 (25) - 29,975
- 109,545 - 2,314 111,859
43,684 70,146 (57,954) (55,876) -
- 12,945 - (12,945) -
106,465 320,117 (162,610) (76,814) 187,158
191,545 4,074 (91,730) - 103,889
191,545 4,074 (91,730) - 103,889

The majority of restricted funds have been established to award prizes, scholarships and emergency funding to students.
The Peter Coxhead Scholarship Fund represents funds endowed from The Peter Coxhead Foundation to be used to
provide bursaries for students. It is an expendable endowment fund as both the capital and the income of the fund can be

used for this purpose.

The Jack Petchey Foundation provides grants to run the Achievement Award scheme for Generation N*xt participants.
The Town Centre Partnership Project, funded by Southwark Council, supported a programme of free cultural events in

Peckham during 2019.

The Spencer Wills Trust provided a grant to fund current and future purchases of musical instruments.

The Generation N*xt fund supports the costs of running the Generation N*xt programme, enabling us to offer bursaries to

low-income participants.

The Judi Dench Fund for Access to Drama Training supports initiatives that break down barriers to drama training,
including the National Scouting Network, free auditions, scholarships and bursaries, student wellbeing and welfare

programmes, and emergenecy grants.

The André Ptaszynski Memorial Fund supports emerging and early-career producers, and the Judi Dench Fund. .

The Cultural Education Partnership is a collaboration between between cultural and educational partners Mountview and
South London Gallery motivated to co-create a change in creative education in schools.
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Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st August 2021 (Continued)

The Mountview at Peckham fund represents grants and donations received as part of the capital project to
build new premises for the charity in Peckham, South London. Funds are transferred to designated New

Building Fund once the conditions of restriction have been met.
The transfer from the Judi Dench Fund to the Mountview Emergency Support Fund relates to funds raised
through the Judi Dench Fund for student hardship.
The £2,314 transfer into the Andre Ptaszynski Memorial Fund represents the receipts received in 2019/20 that

were previously held in unrestricted funds until an appropriate purpose was identified for the fund.

Transfers totalling £65,905 were made from the Judi Dench Fund,to the unrestricted fund to contribute to the

costs of student welfare.

All other transfers during the year were in respect of prior year adjustments.

Allocation of Net Assets to Funds

Restricted Endowment Designated Unrestricted
2021 Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£ £ £ £ £
Fixed assets - - 28,976,115 74,598 29,050,713
Current assets 187,158 103,889 269,533 7,528,830 8,089,409
Current liabilities - - (661,516) (7,338,781) (8,000,297)
Non-current liabilities - - (26,339,877) (169,703) (26,509,580)
187,158 103,889 2,244,254 94,944 2,630,245
Restricted Endowment Desighated Unrestricted
2020 Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 29,367,588 64,985 29,432,573
Current assets 106,465 191,545 320,452 7,515,008 8,133,470
Current liabilities - - (677,496) (6,696,174) (7,373,670)
Non-current liabilities - - (25,470,952) (129,416) (25,600,368)
106,465 191,545 3,539,592 754,403 4,592,005

Free reserves at the balance sheet date were £20,346 (2020 restated free reserves: £689,418).

Theatre Tax Relief Claim

In the year there have been 20 productions (2020: 22) that are subject to a claim for theatre tax relief.

2021 2020
£ £
Tax credit 79,023 167,345
Investments

Mountview Arts Centre Limited

Mountview Arts Centre Limited (‘'MAC') is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated in England and
Wales, with 3 directors who are its members and all of whom are also trustees of the charity Mountview
Academy of Theatre Arts Limited (‘'MATA"). MAC is therefore effectively controlled by MATA and as such is

treated as a wholly owned subsidiary of MATA. MAC has not traded since incorporation but used to hold one
lease in trust for MATA. MAC has net assets of nil and is therefore not consolidated with MATA.

Mountview Productions Limited

Mountview Productions Limited ("MP") is an incorporated company, registered in England and Wales with
issued share capital of £1, wholly owned by Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited (MATA"). MP has not
traded since incorporation and has net assets of nil and is therefore not consolidated with MATA.
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Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st August 2021 (Continued)

Related Parties

During the year the charity received £37,617 in donations (including gift aid) from seven trustees and
two immediate family members (2020: £35,668 from four trustees and two immediate family members)
towards the Generation Next, the Judi Dench Fund, the Andre Ptaszynski Memorial Fund and the
Mountview at Peckham capital project, and to unrestricted donations. The charity also received a gift in
kind of storage space of £1,592 from a company of which one trustee is a board member.

The charity has a loan secured with the London Borough of Southwark, for which Johnson Situ is a

councillor. He was not a trustee when the loan was agreed.

The charity paid £36,000 (2020: £18,000) to Premier Public Relations Ltd, of which John Reiss is

Executive Chairman; services are provided at 50% reduced rate.

Comparative Statement of Financial Activities

2020
Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment Total
Notes Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds
£ £ £ £ £
Income from
Generating funds:
Donations and legacies 2 365,225 - 334,853 - 700,078
Income from investments 4 17,152 - - 4,927 22,079
Charitable activities:
Education income 5 5,958,191 - - - 5,958,191
Other income 6 238,804 - - - 238,804
Total income 6,579,372 - 334,853 4,927 6,919,152
Expenditure on
Raising funds
Fundraising costs 8 106,950 - - - 106,950
Charitable activities: -
Education costs 8 6,266,596 1,231,434 129,214 58,000 7,685,244
Total expenditure 7 6,373,546 1,231,434 129,214 58,000 7,792,194
Net income / (expenditure) 205,825 (1,231,434) 205,639 (53,073) (873,042)
Other recognised gains:
Tax Credit 23 96,618 - - - 96,618
Transfers between funds 21 - 164,560 (164,560) - -
Net movement in funds 302,443 (1,066,874) 41,079 (53,073) (776,424)
Fund balances brought forward 451,959 4,606,466 65,386 244,618 5,368,429
Fund balances carried forward 754,402 3,539,592 106,465 191,545 4,592,005
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27 Comparative Restricted Funds  Balance Balance
Brought Carried

Forward Income Expenditure  Transfers Forward

£ £ £ £ £

Gyearbuor Asante Memorial Priz¢ 4,111 - (1,193) - 2,918
Diana Boddington Prize Fund 4,991 - - 240 - 4,751
Town Centre Partnership Project 2,926 10,000 (11,552) - 1,374
Luke Morton Award 5,000 - (2,000) - 4,000
Jack Petchey Foundation 547 2,250 (1,765) - 1,032
Leverhulme Trust - 46,005 (46,005) - -
Community Outreach 9,304 636 (4,337) - 5,603
Bursary Fund 30,830 47,262 (43,423) - 34,669
Mountview Hardship Fund 958 625 (17,891) 16,308 -
Spencer Wills Trust 6,719 3,523 (1,808) - 8,434
Judi Dench Fund - 59,992 - (16,308) 43,684
Mountview at Peckham - 164,560 - (164,560) -

65,386 334,852 (129,214) (164,560) 106,464

Endowment Funds
The Peter Coxhead Scholarship 244,618 4,927 (58,000) - 191,545

244,618 4,927 (58,000) - 191,545
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